

TABLE OF CONTENTS OF
THE BY-LAWS OF
THE MIDLAND COUNTY SPORTSMAN'S CLUB

ARTICLE SECTION	DESCRIPTION	PAGE
I.....	BUSINESS PURPOSE	2
1.1	NAME	
1.2	LOCATION	
1.3	PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES	
II.....	MEMBERSHIP	2
2.1	ACCEPTANCE	
2.2	CLASSIFICATION	
2.3	ANNUAL DUES	
2.4	EXPULSION	
2.5	REPRESENTATION	
III.....	ANNUAL MEETING	3
3.1	MEETINGS	
3.2	QUORUM	
3.3	VOTING	
3.4	ELECTIONS	
IV.....	BOARD OF DIRECTORS	4
4.1	OFFICERS	
4.2	MEETINGS	
4.3	QUORUM	
4.4	TERM OF OFFICE	
4.5	DUTIES OF OFFICERS	
4.6	DISCLOSURE	
4.7	VACANCIES	
4.8	ABSENCE OF OFFICERS	
V.....	STANDING COMMITTEES	7
5.1	APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEES	
5.2	COMMITTEES	
VI.....	PARLIMENTARY AUTHORITY	7
VII.....	DISSOLUTION	7
VIII.....	ACQUISITION AND DISPOSITION OF CLUB PROPERTY	8
8.1	ACQUISITION	
8.2	DISPOSITION	
IX.....	AMMENDMENT PROCEDURE	8
9.1	NOTIFICATION	
9.2	INITIALIZATION	
9.3	VOTING	

BY-LAWS of The Midland County Sportsman's Club, as amended on the 24nd Day of February, 2007. Articles of incorporation for the club were filed with the Michigan Department of Commerce, Corporation and Securities Bureau, Corporation Division, Lansing, Michigan on the 4th day of May, 1937. All previous BY-LAWS are hereby void.

ARTICLE I

SECTION 1: NAME

The name of this organization incorporated as a nonprofit organization under the laws of the State of Michigan and hereinafter referred to as the "Club" shall be "The Midland County Sportsman's Club".

SECTION 2: LOCATION

Activities of the club shall center around the "John E. Hoy Lodge" 2267 Sturgeon Road, Midland County, Midland, Michigan.

SECTION 3: PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

- (A) To provide a safe place to conduct Shooting Sports.
- (B) To protect and defend the right of our citizens to own and bear arms.
- (C) To teach individuals to properly handle arms, as prescribed by the NRA (National Rifle Association), DCM (Director of Civilian Marksmanship) and Hunter Safety programs.
- (D) To cooperate with the National Rifle Association, the Michigan United Conservation Club and any other Sportsman's organizations to conserve the natural environment and all wildlife.
- (E) To promote conservation education programs designated to educate citizens in the cause of natural resource and environmental conservation. Creating in them an awareness and understanding of the importance of this aim, equipping them to work knowledgeably and effectively toward this achievement and through rational discussion to attempt resolution of all issues affecting our environment.

ARTICLE II MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 1: ACCEPTANCE

The membership of the club shall include any person who makes application in writing to the club Membership Secretary for membership, and is accepted by the Board of Directors. Such application may be rejected by the Board of Directors, by a majority vote, for good cause.

Any person whose application for membership has been denied by the board, may appeal such action as a matter of the first action taken by the members at the next board meeting.

SECTION 2: CLASSIFICATION

Classes of membership, shall be: Regular, Senior, Life, and Honorary.

(A) REGULAR

A Regular Membership shall be for any person eighteen (18) years of age or older and their

spouse. Their family dependents under twenty two (22) years of age shall have club privileges according to current rules set by the Board of Directors.

(B) SENIOR

Senior membership shall be for any person sixty (60) years of age or older.

(C) LIFE

Life membership may be bestowed by the board.

(D) HONORARY

Honorary membership may be bestowed by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 3: ANNUAL DUES

Annual Dues for the various classes of membership shall be set by the Board of Directors upon affirmative vote of at least two-thirds (2/3) vote of the total board members.

SECTION 4: EXPULSION

A member may be expelled from the club when the Board of Directors has voted, by two-thirds (2/3) vote of total board members, that continuation of such membership is detrimental to the interests of the club.

Any person whose membership has been terminated by the Board may appeal such action as a matter of the first action taken by the members at the next board meeting.

SECTION 5: REPRESENTATION

All members have the privilege of the floor at any meeting of the club.

ARTICLE III
ANNUAL MEETINGS

SECTION 1: MEETINGS

The club shall convene in a regular annual meeting during the month of December each year. The date and place of the annual meeting shall be immediately following the December Board Meeting, with notice mailed to all members, officers, and directors at least twenty (20) days in advance. The notice shall include a printed agenda containing the slate of candidates for elected office as proposed by the nominating committee along with the names of all other candidates for elected office, as nominated in accordance with the provisions of these By-Laws, and any proposed changes to the By-Laws, not otherwise presented to the membership for a vote for adoption, as provided for in these By-Laws.

The president shall have the responsibility and authority to prepare the agenda for the Annual Meeting.

SECTION 2: QUORUM

At any annual meeting seven (7) Board Members plus any other members present shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, except for those specific items of business provided for otherwise in these by-laws.

SECTION 3: VOTING

Voting shall be by voice, unless a roll call or secret ballot is prescribed by these by-laws. A majority vote is sufficient for the adoption of any motion that is in order, except as these by-

laws otherwise prescribe. Each paid membership present shall receive one (1) vote.

SECTION 4: ELECTIONS

(A) ELECTIONS: Elections shall be by secret ballots and shall be decided by a plurality vote. A tie vote will be decided by a run-off election to be held at the meeting. Elections shall begin immediately following the Board meeting.

(B) NOMINATIONS: The Board shall elect a nominating Committee Chairman and three (3) other club members to serve on the Nominating Committee. The Nominating Committee shall draw up a slate of candidates for the election at the next annual Meeting. Publication of this slate must be made at least twenty (20) days prior to the annual meeting.

Nominations for all elected offices will be accepted from the floor at the regularly scheduled Board of Directors meeting at which the Nominating Committee reports its slate of candidates for elected office. The Nominating Committee's slate shall be published in the newsletter immediately prior to the regularly scheduled Board of Directors meeting at which it reports its proposed slate. Unless announced via the newsletter to be otherwise, the Nominating Committee shall report its slate of candidates at the regularly scheduled October Board of Directors meeting. All nominations from the floor must be accepted in person or in writing at the time of the nomination. No one may accept a nomination for more than one elected office. Once a person has accepted a nomination, they may not be nominated for any other office. Once nominations are closed by the president, no other names may be added to the ballot. If any votes are cast for individuals who are not nominated in accordance with this rule, those votes shall not be considered. The names of all candidates shall be published in advance of the Annual Meeting, as provided for in these By-Laws. Such publication shall not differentiate between which candidates are the slate reported by the Nominating Committee and those nominated from the floor. A nominee for elected office must be a member in good standing at the time of the nomination and for no less than the immediately preceding two full membership years and, if elected, must maintain their membership in good standing for the duration of their term.

(C) QUALIFICATIONS: Any member in good standing shall be eligible for office in this club. Term of the elected officers shall commence the following January.

ARTICLE IV BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 1: OFFICERS

(A) The elected officers of the club shall be a President, Vice President, Treasurer, Membership Secretary, Recording Secretary, and nine (9) Directors. No person may hold more than one office at any time.

(B) The governing body of the club shall consist of the elected officers of the club and shall be called "The Board of Directors."

SECTION 2: MEETINGS

(A) The Board of Directors shall hold a Board meeting each month, of which the time and place shall be determined by the board of directors.

(B) Special Meetings: Upon the demand of three officers an immediate meeting of the

Board of Directors shall be called. The purpose of the meeting shall be contained in the notice of the meeting. Reasonable effort shall be made to notify each officer and board member of the date, time, and place of the meeting and reasonable efforts shall be made to accommodate as many offices and board members as possible, based on the immediacy (or lack thereof) of the need to convene the Board of Directors. Action taken at such meetings shall be no less than eight (8) affirmative votes. A Special Meeting shall be called when an issue of a time sensitive nature arises which would be to the Club's detriment to delay addressing until the next Regular Meeting; in such case, the meeting shall be scheduled as immediately as possible, in compliance with this section. A Special Meeting may also be called when an issue requires such time for consideration and deliberation that it would cause too extensive a delay in the completion of a Regular Meeting. Special Meetings of the second type shall be announced to the general membership via the newsletter if reasonably possible. Actions at a Special Meeting shall be limited to the announced purpose of the Special Meeting.

(C) Actions taken by the Club which require an authorization granted by the Board of Directors may only be authorized by a vote in a meeting convened in accordance with this Section.

SECTION 3: QUORUM

A quorum of the board at a board meeting shall be seven (7) officers.

SECTION 4: TERM OF OFFICE

Term of office shall be two (2) years for the President, Vice President, Recording Secretary, Membership Secretary, and Treasurer. Except as otherwise provided in these By-Laws, they shall be elected in alternating years as follows: In even numbered years the President, Recording Secretary, and Treasurer. In odd number years, the Vice President and Membership Secretary. Term of office for the Directors shall be three (3) years. Three Directors shall be elected every year. No person shall serve more than six (6) consecutive years. If a person serves six (6) consecutive years, they shall not hold any elected office again for at least one (1) full year.

SECTION 5: DUTIES OF OFFICERS

(A) President:

The President shall be the chief executive officer of the club and, subject to the control of the board of directors, shall have the charge of its affairs. He shall preside at and prepare agendas for all meetings of the club and of the board of directors, he shall chair the board of Directors meetings, and shall have such other powers and duties as are incident to his office and not inconsistent with these by-laws, or as at any time shall be assigned to him by the Board of Directors.

(B) Vice President:

It shall be the duty of the Vice President to assist the President in the performance of his duties when called upon to do so by the President or the Board of Directors. In the event of the disability of the President, the Vice President shall have all of the powers and perform all the duties of the President. The Vice President shall have all other powers and duties as may at any time be assigned him by the Board of Directors.

(C) Treasurer:

The Treasurer shall receive all monies from the Membership Secretary and other sources of club income. He shall maintain bank deposits of club monies. He shall disburse club monies.

Disbursements of a thousand dollars or more must be approved by the board, and countersigned by the President. He shall report at each board meeting of the financial status of the club. At the annual meeting he shall make an annual report of club finances and attached to this report shall be a written notice of an audit of the financial records by a qualified person who shall be appointed by the President and approved by the board. The Treasurer shall be bonded by the club.

(D) Recording Secretary:

The Recording Secretary shall keep a record of the proceedings of the club. He shall have the responsibility for meeting notices and such notices shall be made at least one week in advance of the meeting. At the annual meeting he shall make available minutes of all board meetings. He shall maintain corporate status with State of Michigan, Department of Commerce, Corporation & Securities Bureau.

(E) Membership Secretary:

The Membership Secretary shall keep a record of the membership status of all members. He shall collect membership dues and report at each meeting of monies received. Monies received shall be turned over to the Treasurer at each monthly board meeting. He shall send out membership cards and conduct the correspondence pertaining to memberships. He shall be bonded by the club.

SECTION 6: DISCLOSURE

Any record of officers or committees pertaining to club business shall be made open to inspection upon demand by any club member. With demander paying any cost incident to the club.

SECTION 7: VACANCIES

(A) In the event of a vacancy in the office of the President, either by death, resignation, or by removal for any cause, the Vice President shall assume charge of and exercise the duties of that office until the next annual meeting.

(B) Any member of the board of directors may be removed from their office, for cause, by a two-thirds (2/3) affirmative vote of the total Board of Directors at any meeting of the Board.

(C) Vacancies in any office, other than president, shall be filled by a vote of the Board of Directors. Those elected shall hold office until their successors are elected at the next annual meeting.

(D) Any officer not present at two (2) consecutive, regular scheduled meetings of the board without notifying the board shall be considered resigned, except under extenuating circumstances.

SECTION 8: ABSENCE OF OFFICERS

The President, or in his absence, the Vice President, or in his absence the Recording Secretary, shall preside at all meetings of the club.

ARTICLE V
STANDING COMMITTEES

SECTION 1: APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEES

The President, by the second board meeting shall appoint all standing committees herein named and such other committees as he, or the board deems necessary, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors. Members of committees may not be removed except by vote of the board of Directors.

SECTION 2: COMMITTEES

(A) The Rules Committee shall investigate questions that may arise relative to the interpretation of these by-laws, any matters of state or federal laws and regulations and submit recommendations to the Board of Directors. The Rules Committee shall also consider all proposed amendments to these BY-LAWS.

(B) The Nominating Committee shall be comprised in accordance with Article III, Sec 4 (B) of these BY-LAWS. The Nominating Committee shall select, as nominees for each position, the individuals, in the judgment of the Nominating Committee, who will best promote the interest of the club.

(C) The Maintenance Committee shall be comprised of one (1) Maintenance Coordinator and at least four (4) Maintenance Heads, One (1) or two (2) for each area, The Club House, The Grounds, The Rifle Range, and The Skeet and Trap Range. The Maintenance Heads Shall report to the Board of Directors of the repairs or improvements that need to be done in each of their respective areas. Together they shall plan workdays.

ARTICLE VI
PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

The rules contained in Robert's Rules of Order shall govern the club in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with the By-Laws of the club.

ARTICLE VII
DISSOLUTION

Upon dissolution of the club, the Board of Directors shall elect a Board of Trustees of three persons. This Board of Trustees shall put the club assets in trust for a three year period during which time the club may be reactivated by an organization of at least fifty sportsmen operating under the club by-laws at the time of dissolution. If reactivation is not accomplished in the three-year period, then the trustees may dispose of any assets. Gain from such disposal shall be only to organizations, who's aims and goals are in keeping with the purpose and objectives of the club. Organizations receiving gain shall be chosen by the trustees. In the period of trusteeship, expenses may be met by the trustees by rental or disposal of assets. Trustees shall serve in a non-paid status.

MCSC BY-LAWS AS AMENDED BY THE GENERAL MEMBERSHIP 2/24/07
ARTICLE VIII
ACQUISITION and DISPOSITION of CLUB PROPERTY

SECTION 1: ACQUISITION

Acquisition of land, buildings, equipment or improvements requiring expenditure of more than two thousand dollars shall require an affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the board members.

SECTION 2: DISPOSITION

Disposition of any club land shall require an affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the members voting and a majority of the membership must vote to constitute a valid poll.

ARTICLE IX
AMENDMENT PROCEDURE

SECTION 1: NOTIFICATION

These by-laws may be amended only after the club membership has been notified of the proposed amendment and the method of voting.

SECTION 2: INITIALIZATION

Amendments may be initiated by the Board of Directors or by a written petition signed by at least ten percent of the club membership.

SECTION 3: VOTING

Voting on amendments shall take place at the annual meeting, at a special membership meeting or by mail ballots. The by-laws shall be amended only by an affirmative vote of not less than two-thirds of the club members voting and a majority of the club members must vote to constitute a valid poll.